United Nations Ac.4/53/5R.9

General Assembly Distr.: General

V Fifty-third session 4 November 1998

2 .
=7 (Official Records Original: English

Special Political and Decolonization Committee (Fourth Committee)

Summary record of the 9th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Monday, 19 Octob@98, at 3 p.m.

Chairman ME MACEAO . ... (Mexico)

Contents
Election of officers ¢ontinued
Agenda item 81: Effects of atomic radiatiocontinued

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-81705 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9881705E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.4/53/SR.9<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.4/53/SR.9

The meeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m. 6. Thelosses suffered by Belarus as a consequence of the
Chernobyl disaster were estimated at $28bdn. Belarus
was unable to solve the post-Chernobyl problems alone, and

Election of officers (continued continued to rely on international assistance. It was therefore
1. Ms.Korpi (Finland) nominated Mr. Tanoh-Boutchouéoncerned about donor fatigue, and felt that it was unjustified
(Céte d'Ivoire) for the office of Rapporteur. that the attention of the international community was currently

focused more on problems of nuclear safety and closure of the
hernobyl nuclear power plant than on the medical,
humanitarian, environmental and socio-psychological

2. Mr. Tanoh-Boutchoué (Céte d’lvoire) was electe
Rapporteur by acclamation.

Agenda item 81: Effects of atomic radiation conseguences of the accident. Belarus appealed to States and
(continued (A/53/46, A/53/478, A/53/483; international organizations for continued assistance to the
A/C.4/53/L.6) population of the most affected countries; it was especially

3. Mr.Skrypko (Belarus) said that his delegation note&nterestgd in recei_ving the qewest technologies for _cleaning
with satisfaction from the report of the United Nation£ontaminated soil so that it could be used for agricultural
Scientific Committee on the Effects of Atomic RadiatiorPU'POSes.

(A/53/46) that research on the after-effects of the Chernoblgl  Belarus was taking steps to streamline its national
disaster remained the focus of attention. Contrary to what Wagjislation and help save future generations from similar
stated in paragraph 6 of the report, however, national reseadifasters. In January 1998 two laws had entered into force,
conducted by Belarus demonstrated that over 2 milliasn radiation protection of the population and on export
people, including over 500,000 children under the age of 1dentrol, which established the basis for legislative regulation
living on a quarter of the Republic’s territory, had beein ensuring radiation safety and adherence to international
exposed to radiation; those findings, supported by the reswtaindards of nuclear material management and control. A
of the international scientific conferences on Chernobyiiraft law on the use of atomic energy and radiation protection,
showed that not “some individuals”, but practically every fiftwwhich would determine the degree of liability for the
inhabitant of Belarus had received a high dose of radiati@@nsequences of the use of ionizing radiation sources, was
over a protracted period. Over 20 per cent of the land coutdrrently under consideration by the Parliament. In November
not be lived on or farmed. The vast scale of the disaster wag97, the Parliament had ratified the Vienna Convention on
also demonstrated by a marked increase in infant mortaliGivil Liability for Nuclear Damage, and in SeptembE298

a sharp decline in the birth rate, and an increase in tBelarus had signed the protocol of amendments to that
incidence of thyroid cancer and breast cancer; doctors afdnvention andicceded to the International Convention on
scientists believed that an epidemic of cancer-related diseaskglear Safety.

was imminent in Belarus. 8. He drew attention to the proposal by Belarus to convene

4.  His delegation welcomed the intention of the Scientifian international scientific conference under the aegis of the

Committee, indicated in paragraph 14 of its report, to produGzientific Committee to work out a programme of

a review of all the information available on the Chernobyhternational research on the medical and environmental

disaster. It hoped that national research conducted by tifeer-effects of the Chernobyl disaster.

countries most affected by the disaster would be used in the . , S
. ) . . His delegation expressed support for maintaining the

preparation of the report, and expressed its readiness. t8 . o :

. . . . _“independent status and functions of the Scientific Committee,
provide the Scientific Committee with comprehensive L : :
formation as well as its direct reporting arrangements with the General

' Assembly. It also shared the Scientific Committee’s view
5. Belarus attached paramount importance to ensuri(®/53/46, para. 13) that there was no need for pre-publication
maximum radiation safety for its citizens. The Chernobyvaluation by the International Atomic Energy Agency
tragedy had had a negative effect on economic and social ffaEA) or the World Health Organization (WHO), since that
which impeded the creation of favourable conditions fatould adversely influence the independent status, objectivity

sustainable development in the country as a whole. Thad impartiality of the analysis by the Scientific Committee.

Parliament had approved a new state programme to minim . Ms. Arystanbekova(Kazakhstan) said that Kazakhstan

and. gradually overcome the after-effects of.the ChemOb\X/?s deeply concerned about the effects of atomic radiation
accident, covering health care, compensation for materg:\

| nd hological dam nd th nstruction of e\:l\(/:ausefor almost half a century it had had nuclear weapons
r?c‘:’jgisng psychological damage, a € construction o (?eployed on its territory and had been the scene of a large



A/C.4/53/SR.9

number of nuclear tests, from 29 Augu$€49 to 29 Aigust information on the consequences of the nuclear explosions
1991, when the President oflKakhstan had closed the testing  at the Semipalatinsk testing ground for inclusionrimtia¢ a
ground. The explosions of about 500 nuclear devices had report. Unfortunately, there was no reference in that report
undermined the emomy of the Semipalatinsk region, to the impact of atomic radiation on the health of the
creating a substantial need for humanitarian and social inhabitants of Kazakhstan; she requested that that information
assistance. Since the necessary measures to protect the should be included.

population had not been taken, 1.6 million people had begg_
subjected to radiation in Kazakhstan. The underground tegtgmi
had destroyed ecological linkages, accelerating the proce;
of desertification. Large areas of land and water had been
contaminated by radiation, and economic activity in the ard®. Mr. Gehlot (India) said that atomic energy was

around the testing ground had been considerably reduceiécoming increasingly important in improving standards of
living and the quality of life, particularly in developing

11. Kazakhsthan was cont|r_1u|ng to me_xkehenorm_ous_ Efror(1"8untries. The work of the Scientific Committee was very
to Qvercomelt e acute socm—fe(r:]onom:c, umanitarian aﬁﬂ ortant for providing an independent perspective on the
enylronmenta consequences of the nuclear weapons testy, ects, levels and risks of atomic radiation. India shared the
national nuclear research centre had been established at {38, that IAEA and the Scientific Committee both derived
folrmer teshtlng %r%glnd;.othefr ";‘]Ct'o,n ',nCIUO]lced trlle adoption gt ofits from their respective roles, and therefore supported
alaw Q“t € renabl |tat|on' ofthe V|ct.|r'ns ornuciear tests, ﬂ}ﬂe inclusion of the seventh and eighth preambular paragraphs
estabh.shment of a medical rehabilitation programme, ”?ﬁ draft resolution A/C.4/53/L.6. It also agreed that it was
Ia}unchln.g ofachgrltaﬁ:)le furéq, alnd plrlanbglfor Fhe ConStrUCt!(mportant to sustain the current functions and independent
g an Imt'errkeglona medical rehabilitation centre g6 of the Scientific Committee, including the current

emipalatinsk. reporting arrangements, and therefore supported the inclusion
12. Kazakhstan's voluntary renunciation of nuclear of operative paragraphs 2 and 4.

weapons and its firm commitment to the non-proliferatioT7 India supported the Scientific Committee’s new

regime afforded clear evidence that it was a consiste |togramme for reviewing sources of exposure to ionizing

supporter of the strengthening of regional and global secur thiation and hoped that more attention would be paid to
and resolutely opposed any undermining of thﬁ ’

. . : : ) ewly emerging concepts such as radioadaptive response to
non-proliferation regime. 10997 and 1998, two international y ging P P P

; had b held in Kazakhst . I low doses of ionizing radiation. In that connection, he said
conterences had been nelc in Kazakhstan on iSsues rela the southern coastal regions of India, particularly the state
to the non-proliferation of nuclear weapons; the issu

. . - 1SSUG Kerala, had very high background levels of radiation, yet
conS|dergd had included radlatllon safety and rehab|l|tat|%]rly dense populations had been living in such areas for over

of the territory of the former testing ground. 13 centuries. Studies carried out by his Government did not

13. In implementation of General Assembly resolution reveal higher frequencies of micronuclei and chromosomal
52/169 M, an inter-agency mission had been organized at aberrations in newborn children, or a higher cancer risk
Headquarters, with the participation of experts who had among the inhabitants in general. Those observations pointed
visited the Semipalatinsk region and conducted a tothe need for further studies on the effects on humans of low
comprehensive survey of the consequences of the nuclear chronic exposures and high acute exposures.

tests. The results unambiguously confirmed that a persisteq

hr:gh lra]ackground Ieyel of radlgtlon remained in the rfe?:on, afitermined the safety standards to be followed, and had the
that there were serious negative consequences of the nuc ﬁorityto inspect and approve the operations of all nuclear

explosions. The expgrts had also co_ncludeq that Kazakhsfﬁé‘tallations. It interacted with international bodies and
needed effective assistance from the international commungylsured compliance with the recommendations of the
She requested Member States, and especially donor countriiess national Commission on Radiation Protection (ICRP).

to pr_owde Kazakhstan wnh_the necessary ﬂngnmal aMfwas currently increasing its involvement in safety research
technical assistance to rehabilitate the Semipalatinsk reg'?)?ojects of relevance to regulatory decision-making, and was

14. Kazakhstan had always stated its readiness to provide establishing a safety research institute. Considerable research
every possible assistance to the work of the Scientific and development work was devoted to health, safety and
Committee. In Decembdr997, with the agreement of officers  environmental problems, and a large number of training and

of the Scientific Committee, it had submitted comprehensive retraining programmes were being organized.

The severe consequences of the nuclear tests at
palatinsk demonstrated the need for united international
rts to overcome the consequences of large-scale disasters.

The Atomic Energy Regulatory Board of India



A/C.4/53/SR.9

19. Mr. Hrbé ¢ (Slovakia) said that the primary focus of the  beings and on the environment, and for its coordination with
Scientific Committee had been expanded from studying the member States in gathering and presenting valuable
hazards of environmental radionuclides resulting from the information in that area. Pakistan looked forward to the
atmospheric testing of nuclear weapons to reviewing and Committee’s substantive year 2000 report, and urged it to
assessing the health risks posed to the world’s population by continue to assess the cancer mortality and incidence data
exposure to all sources of radiation. As a country actively derived from various studies, as well as to review the cellular
pursuing the peaceful uses of nuclear energy and the changes that determined heritable genetic defects. The fact
application of radioisotopes in industry and medicine, that medical radiation had become the largest source of man-
Slovakia attached great importance to the Scientific made radiation exposure was a matter of concern, and there
Committee’s work, and had been providing it with relevant was a need to adopt measures against such exposure without
data as well as making full use of its work. interrupting scientific research in nuclear medicine.

20. Slovakia welcomed the Committee’s latest report 26. On previous occasions, Pakistan had emphasized that
(A/53/46) as well as the reports prepared by IAEA the Scientific Committee’s independence and representative
(A/53/478) and WHO (A/53/483). Slovakia had consistently character must not be circumvented by merging it with other
advocated the preservation of the Scientific Committee’s institutions or by changing its existing reporting
independent scientific status, and therefore was pleased to arrangements. Pakistan therefore welcomed the reports of the
learn that IAEA and WHO shared that view. It supported the IAEA and WHO, which contained similar recommendations.
recommendations contained in the Committee’s report, as In its current form as an independent body, the Scientific
well as the Committee’s intention to continue assessing the Committee should be able to continue to make valuable
levels of exposure of the world’'s population to ionizing contributions on the effects of atomic radiation on human
radiation and studying its effects. beings, and its objectives should remain as origirtifigdu

21. Mr. Haggag (Egypt) expressed appreciation for thé” General Assembly resolution 913 (X) of 3 Decemb@b3.

excellent work of the Scientific Committee, which was as 2Mr. Valle (Brazil), speaking on behalf of the States
relevant as ever and should continue. It was to be hoped that members of the Southern Cone Common Market
its lucid reports would be translated into practical measures (MERCOSUR), as well as Bolivia and Chile, said that those
for the elimination or reduction of radiation hazards. States particularly welcomed the decision by the Scientific
mmittee to produce a review, in its year 2000 report, of the

22. Atomic energy, applied to peaceful purposes, notab e ) !
ects of radiation resulting from the Chernobyl accident, and

in the fields of agriculture, medicine and industry, coul d that th | t that i N d add
confer great benefits upon humanity. Developing countri ped that the results of that investigation would add to

should have unrestricted and unconditional access to th§&ting information on p?rsof‘s expo_sed to atomic radiation.
benefits in accordance with Article IV of theThe value of the Committee’s work in evaluating the levels

Non-Proliferation Treaty. and risks of exposure to natural radiation sources should also

. . ~ be emphasized.
23. Egypt continued to advocate the view that the Middle . N o
East should be a zone free of nuclear weapons, especi He was gratified by the Scientific Committee’s interest

weapons of mass destruction. All existing nuclear facilitiéd he views expressed durlpg the fifty-second session of the
located there should be subjected to comprehensi gneral Assgmbly rggardmg its role and functions in the
safeguards under the supervision of the International Atonfi@ntext of United Nations reform, and also took note of the
Energy Agency. In particular, there was a nuclear reactorﬂ?ta_”ed responses of IAEA_and' WHO favouring t_he
Israel that was not subject to any form of internation&ontinuation of the Commitiee’s present reporting

monitoring and constituted a threat to the people of Egypt afiffangements. In conclusion, he was pleased to announce that
the other States in the region. The international commun{fy/2ddition to Argentina, Bolivia, Brazil, Chile, Paraguay and
should assume its responsibilities in that connection. ruguay had decided to co-sponsor the draft resolution on the

) ~_effects of atomic radiation.
24. Egypt supported the draft resolution on the Scientific

Committee and was prepared to strengthen its cooperat
with it.

Mr. Al-Anbuge (Iraq), referring to an article in the 10
April 1995 issue of.e Monde diplomatiquesaid that United
States and British forces had used bombs and shells
25. Mr.Islam (Pakistan) said that the Scientific Committeontaining, in all, some 300 tons of depleted uranium in their
was to be commended for its enormous contribution t@ygression against Iraq in 1991, violating the Charter of the
highlighting the adverse effects of atomic radiation on humagnited Nations and various international treaties and



A/C.4/53/SR.9

covenants and producing environmental contamination, and consequently were a potential source of serious danger
disease among the civilian population, and further damaging to neighbouomgtries. The international community

effects which were only beginning to appear. Not only cancer  should compel Israel to place its nuclear facilities under IAEA
rates, but also the incidence of congenital abnormality, myo- safeguards.

and neuropathy, miscarriage and various other disorders

risen sharply, as a report by the Secretary-General to %s
Subcommission on the Prevention of Discrimination ang
Protection of Minorities had amply documented. The use Q
depleted uranium weapons by the United States and Briti

The tragedies of Hiroshima, Nagasaki and Chernobyl
t never be allowed to happen again, and consequently the
rian Arab Republic called for the elimination of all
ockpiles of nuclear weapons. At the same time, it warned
; L  PrURainst the attempts by certain countries to attach stringent
forces had been a deliberate exercise in the mass kllllngc nditions to the transfer of nuclear tewlogy to countries

civilians, as the toxic effects of such weapons 'nev'tabhﬁatwished to use it for peaceful purposes. On the contrary,

Extfetngeg:atr beyorgjdtt:e tSeitrg:‘ (|)<f. migtary opertatti)ons. Ilﬁ%veloping countries should be helped and encouraged to use
nite ates an e Unite ingdom must bear fu uclear technology for peace.

responsibility under international law for the grave
environmental and health-related effects produced in Iraq B¢-  Effective international cooperation based on good will
their radioactive armament. The suffering of the curreftas the only way to remove the threat of atomic radiation
generation was only the beginning; the effects would be faphich faced all humanity, and harness the power of the atom
by future generations as well. Depleted uranium weapokfsconstructive ends.

should be banned, and States with stockpiles of theoulsl 35 Mr. Ovia (Papua New Guinea) said that Papua New
be required to destroy them immediately. Guinea continued to call for the cessation of nuclear testing

30. Mr. Mekdad (Syrian Arab Republic) said that whilein the South Pacific region, and joined the Marshall Islands

the growing use of nuclear power had certainly confronted tieurging the Government of the United States of America to

world with some potentially serious problems, there could @mpensate the people affected by that Government's
no doubt that the @aceful use of atomic energy could bérevious nuclear testing and to undertake greater efforts to
greatly beneficial to humanity. The Scientific Committee hagiean up the environment in the region.

done excellent work in investigating the effects of atomigs. Papua New Guinea also welcomed the Scientific
energy and assessing its hazards. Effective cooperation ameggnmittee’s report, but reiterated that its mandate should be
the various United Nations agencies concerned with the issi®adened to include active assistance to those suffering from
should be encouraged. the effects of atomic radiation. The need for the complete

31. The most effective way to minimize the negative effecfessation of all nuclear testing and the safe and willing
of atomic radiation would be to implement agreed_upoq;pstruction of all nuclear weapons by those possessing them
multilateral measures to that end, including the standarfigd already been cited by his delegation and others in various
developed by IAEA. At the same time, the United Nationfprums; in addition, he called on the French authorities to
system should develop future-oriented plans for reducing tkéep the region informed of any new findings and
gap between the nations of the North and those of the Soggvelopments arising from the work of scientists in French
in the area of technology for the peaceful use of atomic powdtolynesia.

32. The Syrian Arab Republic had signed th87- Mr. Semenenko (Ukraine) said that in view of the
Non-Proliferation Treaty, and was strongly in favour of &cientific Committee’s continuing status as the major
stronger and more effective system of safeguards. It wishédernational body reviewing the effects of exposure of the
to see the Middle East made a nuclear-weapon-free zone, W@fld population to all sources of ionizing radiation, his
that would be impossible as long as Israel continued eielegation welcomed its decision to include a review of all
possess a massive nuclear arsenal, outside the NBormation available about both local and regional exposures
Proliferation Treaty and the safeguards system, whichfgsulting from the Chernobylccident as a major component
threatened to use to impose the status quo on its neighbo@fdts year 2000 report. The after-effects of the Chernobyl
heedless of the will of the international community. Israel’§agedy, including the contamination of the regional
unilateral development of its military nuclear programme@nvironment with dangerous radioisotopes, continued to pose
constituted a factor of destaization and fear in the Middle @ threat, and Ukraine relied on the assistance of the
East, especially given the current situation. Furthermor@ternational community in dealing with the problem. Recent
Israel’s nuclear installations were known to be leakingie€asures taken in that regard gave reason to hope that such
radiation and liable to cracking, owing to their advanced ag@ternational assistance would increase, and would serve as



A/C.4/53/SR.9

a good example of the international community’s ability to
confront catastrophes of global dimensions.

38. The Chairman informed the Committee that, in
addition to the original sponsors, Armenia, Bolivia, Brazil,
Chile, the Czech Republic, Egypt, Indonesia, Kazakhstan,
Lithuania, Paraguay, Singapore, the Solomon Islands, and
Uruguay had become co-sponsors of draft resolution
A/C.4/53/L.6. The sponsors had expressed their wish that the
draft resolution should be adopted by the Coitbee without

a vote.

39. Draftresolution A/C.4/53/L.6 was adopted.

The meeting rose at 4.45 p.m.



